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operations.

This brief outline stresses the inadequate noture of the
party's work but a2 return visit in Novcmber, 1959 will enable
further and more dctailed work to be done. It is hoped to
locate further sites and moke a re-examin~tion of all these
listed here,

A SUMMARY OF FIELD ARCHAEOLOGY FROM THE DOMINIOW Ml . L1 GROT
BY  S. DAVIS.

I1lus, Plates 2 ond 3.

Work on the rccording of sites in the Wellington District
has been going on regulorly since the beginning of 1959.
A11 work hos becn done in the week-cnds, and on nearly every
Saturdey or Sunday a small party has been slowly working its
way around part of the bleak Wellington coastline, having
recorded by Scptcmber some 35 sites. The Group numbers about
a dozen people, who have worked with great enthusiasm, concen-
trating its recording on the areca around the Porirua Herbour,

Fortunately many of the sites in this district have been
described in various periodicals, Much of Tellington and
the neighbouring coastline has been well doc mented by Elsdon
Best in 2 serics of papers and maps, and we hiave located many
of our sites through consultation with his laterature. One
notable paper, "Porirua ond They Tho Settled It", gives a yard
by yord account of onc side of the Porirua Harbour, and has
been of inestimable valuc in loenting sites, from the ubiquit-
ous midden to the pa, : L

Sites recorded this year include pa sices, terraced hill
sites, middens, isolated pits, and a burial area.

YA SITE3. Pa sites are not numcrous in 4ne Porirua district,
and today there is litlle evidence of fortified arcas. Best
hns suggested that the natives took refuge in the bush vhen
attacked, and this may be a possible explanation of the few pa,
together with the difficulty of cutting fe~tifications in the
hard Wellington rock.
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The first large site recorded this year, in Janusry, wos the
pa site at Mokora (N.160/1) some miles south from the Porirua
Harbour, It is a headlond pa in an excellent state of preserv- .
ation. A sketch plan of it is reproduced elscwherc in this issue
and illustrates the transverse ditch which, with the steep scarp,
forms the main defence of the stronghold, The terraces and line
of small deep pits that run parallel to the ditch are shown.

Another pa recorded was the small headland pa north of
Titahi Bay, know, according to Bést, as Te-Pa-o-Kapo (N.160/25).
It is nov much eroded, but a tr-nsvcrse ditch across the neck of
lond thet joins the pa to the mainland is still in evidence, vAith
a stecep bank some 6' high., . The arca within the pa is small,
measuring some 88' x 94', with only onc clearly defined terrace.
Covered with scrub today, this small pa shows no sign of pits or
further terrocing.

A historic pa site, not yct rccorded, lies under the English
Church at Pauatahanui, =t the head of the eastern arm of the
Porirua Horbours It was built by Te Rangihacata in 1846, but
is now clmost totnlly destroyed. Investigation by the Group showed
that only 2 few shollow trenches now exist, in the ficld behind
the church, - |

VILLAG? SITES. Terranced hill sites, thich are possibly wvillage
sites, aze numerous around the Porirua H-rbour, and sevcral on the
western arm of the horbour hove been recordede They are mostly
similar in type, situntcd a few feet 2bove sea level, on the
gently slopirg spurs thot surround the horbours Most of them
consist of several terraces running tronsversely across the spur,
with occnsional small platforms and semi-circular terraces on the
steeper slopes. - In two cases, well dcfined pits are present on
the géysgces, -, One site, (N.160/2C) has tiro well preserved pits
with raised rims, each on a different terrace. In several cases
middens hove been found high on the terraces, often spilling down
the side of the spur. f11 the terraced sites recorded around
Porirua command excellent views over the harbour. They showr no
evidence todny of defensive enrthworks, slthough it is quite
possible thnt pallisading might hove been used.

Also on the western arm of the harbour we recorded o series
of much wenthcred pits (N.160/19), appearing as shallow depressions |
on n grassy flat just north of the village site of Te Neke. The
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position would be ideal for settlcment, or for cultiv~tions,
as it is sheltered from the cold southerlies.

A smnll terrnced site (N.160/15), was recorded on the
southcrn shore of the enstern arm of the h-rbour. It con-
sisted of three well defined terraces on the sheltered side of
o gully, and a further terrnce associnted with a large pit cut
into the side of the hill., Midden matericl wns found spilling
dovn the hill somc 30' cbove sco level.,

Unrecorded ~s yct, = complicatcd pattern of shollow
terroces exists around the slopes of Mt. Cooper, ot the en-
tronce to the Porirun Horbour, They seem to be pnrt of an
extensive area of cultiv-tion, probably attrched to the
villages on the shores of the harbour,

ISOLATED PITS, - Isolated pits seem to occur occasionslly in
this district, 2 rectongulsr pit being recorded beloir Mt. Cooper,
measuring 27' x 11' cut into the bose of the hill where it
rcached the beach. 4L feature of this pit (N.160/21) wos the
marked roised rim on the se~wnrd side. fAlso, on the steep
ridge of hills running north from Ouvhariu Bey, just post Smith's
Bay, two pits, which appeared ns rectongulor depressions were
recorded (N.160/L), They commonded excellent views south

to Mekarn Pa and the M-rlborough Sounds, ond north tc Mana
Island., Lock of time on this particulor expedition prevented
investigntion of rcported terrnces close by, so it is possiblo
that these pits mny be part of o more complcex site.

MIDDENS. - Looking back over the files of site record forms,
‘one con see thnt the Group hns recorded more middens than any
other type of site. IMiddens are particulnrly numcrous around.
the Porirua Horbour, and the shell fish that moke up most of
the middens must hove been easily obtainnble from the mudflats
-nnd rocks, Within the middens vrrictics of shell hove been
found, but rarely much bone, The shell most frcouently found
in middens is the Tusngi (Chione stutchburyi), whilst the Pipi
(Amphidesma australe) is also found in lnrge quantities. In
the shnllow erstern orm of the horbour the Tstiko or Mud Sn-~il
(Lmphibols crenate)are found in great mumbers, and are well
reprcsented in the middens there; whilst shells such os the
Prur (Holiotis iris) and the Ltoate (Lunells smornpgda)are found
on the rocks on the vestern ~rm of the hnrbour snd appenr also
in middéens there,
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The Group cttempts to analyse the contents of shell middens

in the field, although any difficult identificntions are willingly
done by the Museum Staff. We have found that our lists of shells -
from middens appcar mengre by comparison with the lists published
by Elsdon Best, and ean only conclude that much more of the middens
must have beén visible in his day, or that he excavated for his
moterial,

TWe have records of five middens on the western arm of the har-
bour, most of thcm being close to the beach under the terraced
hillsides. The castern ~rm shows a much greater concentration of
midden mnterial, with two large middens recorded on thc southern
shore, and twelvec on the north-eastcern shorc, One can nlmost trace
a continuous line of shells from the Horokiwi Valley to the Kahao
Strenrm, These middens are o1l exposed in the road cuttings, and
in several ecoses are up to 60' in length. One group of four middens
supplies an olmost continuous line of midden material for over 200',
This concentr-tion is on the beach below what Best records as being
the "Earthworks Pa", but which now appears to be covered by the ruin
of an Army car park. ' <

Further middens have been investigoated ot Paekokariki, where
two great heops of Pipi (Amphidesms australe)werc moppeds Middens .
have been visited in the Waikenane area, which is noted for the
vast heops of midden moterial still exposed on the sandhills behind
the beoche  Severnl of these middens hoave recently been recorded
and are of porticular intcrest, as they are the only middens so far
thot have yielded artefacts on the surface, ~ smoll flaked chisel
and a lorge flaked knife béing picked up therc in 1958.

Middens have slso been recorded at Owhariu Boy, and at Smith's
Boy.

BURTLL AREA. - A record hns been mnde of an intercsting group of
stone mounds in Palliscr Bay (N.168, 169/1. They were scattered
over o boulder strevm beach nt the mouth of onec of the larger rivers
in the Bay. Excavotions by Dr. T.T. Barrow in 1958 yiclded =
crouch burinl from undcrncoth one mould. Then rccording during
Easter, 1959, the largest remaining mound measured 23' x 13'.

PLBEMﬂT; FORT. - The crumbling ruins of the old fort at Paremnta,
built between 1846-47 at the order of Sir George CGrey, attracted o
the attention of the Group one winter aftcernoon.  Following
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consultations with the N-tionnl Historic Flaces Trust, and the
Ngnti-Toa Domain Board, the Group were given a small grant and
asked to clear the ruins so that they could be turfed and o com-
memorative plaque erccteds There hns been a lot of work
involved in this project, and as yet it is only hnalf completed,
for we have had to move tons of the beach boulders that were
part of the original construction. The loecal inhabitants think
that we are building = motor comp (thcre is one planned for that
srea) but within a fow weeks we should be able to confound them
with a carefully clcared site.

A vast omount of recording remains to be done in the
Wellington district, but a good start has been mande this year,
Te arc fortunnte to have had during thce year the cxpert advice
availcble ot the Dominion Museum, where the Conchology,
Ichthyology, ~nd Vertebratce Zoology Departmehts have been most
helpful in identifying material collected during recording,

We have also had much help from local landowners and cnthusinsts,
who have led us to sites, os well as contributing material to
the Museum collcctions.

The maps that illustrate this article were dravm by Miss
W. Mumfords The Photographs are by Mr. Frank O'Leary.

WORK IN THE TAIRAR/PL., by K. Cairns.

"The History of the Woirarapa Maoris" is steadily being
recorded. fLifter gathering rcfcrcnces for some years, the
fiecld checking of sites is progressing well, and during the
year much of the constline hos been covered. Expcditions with
locol enthusiosts hnve been most successful, and their know-
ledgc of important sites most uscful,

Purthermore locnl collections have been examined o~nd
recorded, and cvery cndeavour has becen made to sccure the exnct
locality of artefacts recorded. It is hoped ultimately to
cover the area from Palliser Bay north to the Manawatu River, and
nlthough the programme is ambitous, progress to date is en-
couraging. L number of inlond settlement arcas hove been
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Sketch plan of
Makara Pa
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SKETCH PLAN OF MAKARA PA -
ART. S.DAVIS






